
Page 28 TITLE 15—COMMERCE AND TRADE § 21a 

set out as an Effective Date note under section 1657 of 

Title 28, Judiciary and Judicial Procedure. 

Amendment by Pub. L. 98–443 effective Jan. 1, 1985, 

see section 9(v) of Pub. L. 98–443, set out as a note under 

section 5314 of Title 5, Government Organization and 

Employees. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1959 AMENDMENT 

Section 2 of Pub. L. 86–107 provided that: ‘‘The 

amendments made by section 1 [amending this section] 

shall have no application to any proceeding initiated 

before the date of enactment of this Act [July 23, 1959] 

under the third or fourth paragraph of section 11 of the 

Act entitled ‘An Act to supplement existing laws 

against unlawful restraints and monopolies, and for 

other purposes’, approved October 15, 1914 (38 Stat. 734, 

as amended; 15 U.S.C. 21) [this section]. Each such pro-

ceeding shall be governed by the provisions of such sec-

tion as they existed on the day preceding the date of 

enactment of this Act.’’ 

TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS 

For transfer of functions of Federal Trade Commis-

sion, with certain exceptions, to Chairman of such 

Commission, see Reorg. Plan No. 8 of 1950, § 1, eff. May 

24, 1950, 15 F.R. 3175, 64 Stat. 1264, set out under section 

41 of this title. 

§ 21a. Actions and proceedings pending prior to 
June 19, 1936; additional and continuing vio-
lations 

Nothing herein contained shall affect rights of 
action arising, or litigation pending, or orders of 
the Federal Trade Commission issued and in ef-
fect or pending on review, based on section 13 of 
this title, prior to June 19, 1936: Provided, That 
where, prior to June 19, 1936, the Federal Trade 
Commission has issued an order requiring any 
person to cease and desist from a violation of 
section 13 of this title, and such order is pending 
on review or is in effect, either as issued or as 
affirmed or modified by a court of competent ju-
risdiction, and the Commission shall have rea-
son to believe that such person has committed, 
used or carried on, since June 19, 1936, or is com-
mitting, using or carrying on, any act, practice 
or method in violation of any of the provisions 
of said section 13 of this title, it may reopen 
such original proceedings and may issue and 
serve upon such person its complaint, supple-
mentary to the original complaint, stating its 
charges in that respect. Thereupon the same 
proceedings shall be had upon such supple-
mentary complaint as provided in section 21 of 
this title. If upon such hearing the Commission 
shall be of the opinion that any act, practice, or 
method charged in said supplementary com-
plaint has been committed, used, or carried on 
since June 19, 1936, or is being committed, used 
or carried on, in violation of said section 13 of 
this title, it shall make a report in writing in 
which it shall state its findings as to the facts 
and shall issue and serve upon such person its 
order modifying or amending its original order 
to include any additional violations of law so 
found. Thereafter the provisions of section 21 of 
this title, as to review and enforcement of or-
ders of the Commission shall in all things apply 
to such modified or amended order. If upon re-
view as provided in said section 21 of this title 
the court shall set aside such modified or 
amended order, the original order shall not be 
affected thereby, but it shall be and remain in 

force and effect as fully and to the same extent 
as if such supplementary proceedings had not 
been taken. 

(June 19, 1936, ch. 592, § 2, 49 Stat. 1527.) 

REFERENCES IN TEXT 

Nothing herein contained, referred to in text, prob-

ably means nothing contained in act June 19, 1936, ch. 

592, 49 Stat. 1526, popularly known as the Robinson-Pat-

man Antidiscrimination Act and also as the Robinson- 

Patman Price Discrimination Act, which enacted sec-

tions 13a, 13b, and 21a of this title and amended section 

13 of this title. For complete classification of this Act 

to the Code, see Short Title note set out under section 

13 of this title and Tables. 

TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS 

For transfer of functions of Federal Trade Commis-

sion, with certain exceptions, to Chairman of such 

Commission, see Reorg. Plan No. 8 of 1950, § 1, eff. May 

24, 1950, 15 F.R. 3175, 64 Stat. 1264, set out under section 

41 of this title. 

§ 22. District in which to sue corporation 

Any suit, action, or proceeding under the anti-
trust laws against a corporation may be brought 
not only in the judicial district whereof it is an 
inhabitant, but also in any district wherein it 
may be found or transacts business; and all proc-
ess in such cases may be served in the district of 
which it is an inhabitant, or wherever it may be 
found. 

(Oct. 15, 1914, ch. 323, § 12, 38 Stat. 736.) 

REFERENCES IN TEXT 

The antitrust laws, referred to in text, are defined in 

section 12 of this title. 

§ 23. Suits by United States; subpoenas for wit-
nesses 

In any suit, action, or proceeding brought by 
or on behalf of the United States subpoenas for 
witnesses who are required to attend a court of 
the United States in any judicial district in any 
case, civil or criminal, arising under the anti-
trust laws may run into any other district: Pro-

vided, That in civil cases no writ of subpoena 
shall issue for witnesses living out of the dis-
trict in which the court is held at a greater dis-
tance than one hundred miles from the place of 
holding the same without the permission of the 
trial court being first had upon proper applica-
tion and cause shown. 

(Oct. 15, 1914, ch. 323, § 13, 38 Stat. 736.) 

REFERENCES IN TEXT 

The antitrust laws, referred to in text, are defined in 

section 12 of this title. 

§ 24. Liability of directors and agents of corpora-
tion 

Whenever a corporation shall violate any of 
the penal provisions of the antitrust laws, such 
violation shall be deemed to be also that of the 
individual directors, officers, or agents of such 
corporation who shall have authorized, ordered, 
or done any of the acts constituting in whole or 
in part such violation, and such violation shall 
be deemed a misdemeanor, and upon conviction 
therefor of any such director, officer, or agent 
he shall be punished by a fine of not exceeding 
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